
   

May 18, 2011
MINUTES:  THE INLAND WETLANDS COMMISSION,  Town of  Hamden held a Public  Hearing & Regular 
Meeting on Wednesday,  May 4,  2011 at  7:00 p.m.  in Room C107, Hamden High School,  2040 Dixwell  Avenue, 
Hamden, CT and the following items were reviewed:

Commissioners in Attendance:                                                Nancy Rosenbaum, Chair
                                                                                                    Michael Montgomery, Vice Chair
                                                                                                    Joan Lakin
                                                                                                    Andrew Brand
                                                                                                    Michael Stone – arrived at 7:20 PM
                                                                                                    Michael Milazzo
                                                                                                    Kirk Shadle
                                                                                                    Bob Anastasio

Others in Attendance:                                                              Dan Kops, Assistant Town Planner
                                                                                                                        Thomas Vocelli, Inland/Wetlands Officer
                                                                                                    Peggy Craft, Acting Commission Clerk
                                                                                                    Lisa Raccio, Stenographer

Chairwoman Rosenbaum called the meeting to order at 7:03 PM.

Attendance was taken by Vice Chair Montgomery.

Ms. Rosenbaum stated that a quorum had been established.

Next, Ms. Rosenbaum explained the Public Hearing Process.   She said that first the applicant would speak. 
Next, the public would be invited to speak for or against the application.  The applicant would then have an 
opportunity for rebuttal.  Ms. Rosenbaum asked that each speaker state their name and address.  After this 
process was completed the Commissioners would give their comments.

Ms. Rosenbaum further stated that the purpose of this commission is the preservation of inland wetlands and 
water courses.  The Commission has no jurisdiction over bridge aesthetics, scenic roads, etc.  She asked all 
speakers to please address their comments to inland wetlands and water courses.

Ms. Rosenbaum said the Commissioners’ resumes are part of the proceedings and are on file if anyone wishes 
to see them. 
      



I.  Public Hearing
   a.  11-1167     Tuttle Avenue over Mill River Bridge Replacement

     Town of Hamden, Applicant        

Ms. Rosenbaum said the revised  plans for this application are on the table if anyone wishes to look at them.

David Cecia, Transportation Engineer, BL Companies said the existing bridge is being replaced due to structural defects, 
and it is structurally obsolete and hydraulically inadequate.   Mr. Cecia displayed the revised plans for the bridge.  He said 
these plans include a raised roadway, which will be widened and raised one to two feet.  There will be a 24 foot road way 
with shoulders on both sides.  He said the hydraulics will be improved to raise the road .  The wetlands will be impacted 
by the new abutment.  The center pier will be removed.  A more improved root wad system by be placed on the side to 
stabilize the failed slope.  Boulder clusters will also be added and will benefit the fish because they will slow the river 
velocity.  Wildlife passage will be provided with a shelf below the east side of the abutment.   Mr. Cecia pointed this shelf 
out on the plan.

Mr. Cecia said at the end of last month’s meeting there were questions on five different things.  Regarding the 
planting plan, this was given to Town Engineer Robert Brinton for evaluation. 

Mr. Brinton said Aris Stalis prepared a conceptual planting plan.  He has reviewed the plan and is in agreement. 

Mr. Cecia said refueling will be done on the east side, and pointed this out on the plan.

An operations sequence plan was submitted on an additional sheet.  

The nature of the small depressed area holding water near the bridge was investigated, and found to not likely 
be a vernal pool.

Regarding who would be notified of any problems/emergencies at the site, Mr. Cecia said Town Engineer 
Robert Brinton and the Regional Water Authority would be notified.  The Army Corp of Engineers and Mr. 
Vocelli would also be notified.

Ms. Rosenbaum asked if there were any questions from the Commissioners.

There were none.

Next, Ms. Rosenbaum asked if there was anyone who wished to speak in favor of this application.

Gail Cameron of 117 Squire Lane said a letter she wrote to the Commission was read at the last meeting, and 
she thanked the Commission for addressing her concerns.  She added she is not in opposition to this plan.
Ms. Rosenbaum asked if there was anyone who wished to speak against this application.
 There were none.

Ms. Rosenbaum asked if there was anyone who wished to comment.

There were none.

The Public Hearing was closed at 7:17 PM.

2



 

II.  Regular Meeting

   1.    Pending applications
                  
                   a.   11-1167     Tuttle Avenue over Mill River Bridge Replacement

      Town of Hamden, Applicant        
                                                                                                                                            
There was no further discussion regarding this application, and Ms. Rosenbaum called for a motion. 

Commissioner Milazzo motioned to approve Application 11-1167 Tuttle Avenue over Mill River Bridge 
Replacement providing the plan covers RWA and DPH concerns and incorporates the mitigation 
planting plan, subject to review by the Chair.  Commissioner Lakin seconded the motion that passed 
unanimously.

   b.   11-1168     Todd Street over Eaton Brook Bridge-Deck Replacement 
       Town of Hamden, Applicant                     

Chad Perkoski of BL Companies, representing the Town of Hamden addressed the Commission.  

Mr. Perkoski said this is a bridge deck replacement.  Mr. Perkoski summarized the work that will be done,.  He 
said the application for this project was submitted last month.  A site walk was conducted on April 20th .  He is 
seeking approval to move forward with this project.

An inspection was performed two years ago.  It was determined that the deck was in poor condition and 
structurally deficient.  The abutment and the wing wall are in fair condition and could be reused.

It is proposed to remove the existing deck structure and replace it with pre-cast concrete.  Minor stone masonry 
work will also be done to reface stone that is broken or loose.  Additional approach roadway work will be done 
and a new bridge railing will be installed.  The project will be done during low flow conditions.  The road will 
be closed and there will be a detour.  He added that the construction should take two months.  

Ms. Rosenbaum asked if there were any questions from the Commissioners.

Commissioner Brand asked if this will include restoration of landscaping or if landscaping is planned.  Mr. 
Perkoski said the anticipated work will entail turf restoration.  There will be no removal of trees or disturbance 
of local area vegetation.  He added that if the contractor disturbs the area along the gutter line it would be 
restored to preconstruction conditions.

Mr. Montgomery asked if there will be a stock pile of demolished materials on site.  Mr. Perkoski discussed 
what is expected during the demolition part of the project.  It is planned to close the road.  There will be space 
to leave some of the concrete until it can be removed.  He was asked if this is shown on the plans.  He said it is 
not but can be shown in a note.

Mr. Stone arrived at 7:20 PM.

Mr. Perkoski said there will be a containment area for debris which drops during demolition.  There will be a 
temporary structure lined with water proof polyethylene to catch any falling debris.  

3



Ms. Rosenbaum asked Ron Walters of the RWA if their concerns had been addressed.  Town Engineer Robert 
Brinton submitted a memo with comments showing that these concerns have been addressed.
Kurt Zilm of 217 Todd Street an abutter, said debris floats downstream to his property.  He said the catch basins 
are undersized.  He urged the commissioners to address the sand that is dumped on the street and goes into the 
catch basins.  Overflow goes into Eaton Brook and is destroying the wetlands.   He said this would make sense 
since catch basins are involved and should become part of the project.  He said there is a need for larger catch 
basins.

Mr. Brinton said this is not related to the bridge but agreed that there is a lot of sand.  It has been agreed to 
replace the existing catch basin with a larger capacity catch basin.  He added that as far as he knows the Town is 
not using sand anymore.  Ms. Rosenbaum asked if replacing the catch basin is part of the project.  Mr. Brinton 
said it is.  She also asked if this could be part of the approval of the project.  Mr. Brinton said it could. 

Commissioner Brand motioned to approve 11-1168, Todd Street over Eaton Brook Bridge-Deck Replacement, 
with the condition that the Regional Water Authority comments be followed and that the comments by 
the Town Engineer concerning larger catch basins with more storage capacity be added.  Commissioner 
Anastasio seconded the motion that passed unanimously.

   c.    11-1169      903 Whitney Avenue-Addition to Eli Whitney Museum Workshop Building
                         Eli Whitney Museum, Applicant                                                     

Bill Brown, Director of the Eli Whitney Museum and the representative for the Applicant, addressed the 
Commission and introduced Nathan Pudlin of Chorney Associates.

The applicant proposes to add a small studio space to the workshop at the 903 Whitney Avenue building.  He 
said the work will be done between September and November.  This is a single story slab. There is added detail 
on the portion of work that will replace the paved area with crushed stone.

Mr. Brown was asked about the planting plan.  He said they are not cutting anything.  They will move one tree 
and plant two cedars. 

Ms. Rosenbaum asked if there were any questions from the Commissioners. 

Ms. Rosenbaum asked if the split rail fence will remain on the side toward the river, and if it will continue on 
the other side.  Mr. Brown said there is no way to dig there.  He said they have taken to hiking around out side 
of the fence.  He added that he would rather they not do this.  He said this is very precarious, and he would 
rather they not do this.  He said they will keep the split rail fence as they have it. 

Commissioner Lakin motioned to approve 11-1169, 903 Whitney Avenue-Addition to Eli Whitney Museum 
Workshop Building, as presented on the plan dated May 4, 2011.  Commissioner Milazzo seconded the 
motion.

Commissioner Montgomery asked to amend the motion to read on the plan dated March 15, 2011 and 
revised on May 4, 2011.

Commissioner Lakin accepted this as a friendly amendment.  The motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
                
    a.   11-1170       2623 Dixwell Avenue – Pardee Brook Diversion Channel -                                                
                                            Maintenance Activities – Town of Hamden, Applicant                             

4



Town Engineer Robert Brinton gave a brief history of the diversion channel construction.  He said this is a 
very wide channel.  During dry weather there is no flow.  He said the Town has not maintained it in terms of 
overgrowth and vegetation.  Meadowbrook residents have voiced concerns regarding the lack of maintenance. 
He said all the approved maintenance has been done; trees and stumps have been removed.  Some samples of 
sediment were found to have low levels of contamination.  He added that the cost of remediation and disposal 
would be over one million dollars.  This project will remove vegetation and the golf course crossing.  He said 
this is essentially the same maintenance project as before, but they will not be doing remediation work.  He said 
this could provide relief for flood storage concerns.   

Commissioner Lakin motioned to table this application for a site inspection.  Commissioner Anastasio 
seconded the motion that passed unanimously.

Cathy Gempka of 171 Worth Avenue addressed the Commission.  She said she wrote a letter regarding the 
creek behind her unit, which overflowed and flooded the lower level of her home.  She asked if this problem 
will be addressed.  She also asked if this project is going to impact the area her unit is in. 

Ms. Rosenbaum said this can be discussed at the next meeting.
       
                       b.  11-1171       170 Birchwood Drive -  driveway culvert-crossing
                                                 Alberto DiChello, Applicant                                                                     
   
Albert DiChello, 100 Birchwood Drive, the applicant addressed the Commission.  Mr. DiChello said he would 
like to plant a vegetable garden at 170 Birchwood Drive.  He said there is a driveway leading to this area, but it 
would be necessary to extend the driveway through the wetlands. 

Ms. Rosenbaum said a site inspection should be scheduled.  Following the site inspection the application will 
come back before the Commission at the next meeting.

Commissioner Milazzo moved to table for a site inspection and Commissioner Anastasio seconded the 
motion that passed unanimously.

Marilyn D’Ambrose of 4 Post Falls Lane presented a petition requesting a Public Hearing on this application.

Ms. Rosenbaum said the site inspection will be done and then a Public Hearing will be held at the June 1st 

meeting.  Ms. Rosenbaum said Mr. Vocelli will notify the parties, and suggested they call to confirm.

Commissioner Shadle said he did not understand the stream crossing on the plans.  Mr. Vocelli said the 
applicant is seeking an agriculture exemption for the garden. He added that the applicant wants to culvert the 
stream.
  
             3.   Notices-of-Violation, Cease & Desist & Restore Orders, Notices-to-Appear  
 
                      a.    N.O.V.   64 Rocky Top Road – clearing of trees & removal of vegetation            

Commissioner Lakin motion to have the order stay in effect.  Commissioner Anastasio seconded the motion 
that passed unanimously.  The item was tabled.
  
    b.     N.O.V.   790 Main Street – wetland conservation area encroachments                  

Attorney Woodard and his soil scientist are preparing a proposal for the placement of the fence.   He said it is 
not ready for tonight’s meeting.

5



Mr. Montgomery said he has looked at the map of the proposed location of the house and driveway and said it 
would be better to work on the as built that Mr. Vocelli found in the office.  He said this is a crude map but has 
all the important information.  Attorney Woodard was given a copy of the map.  Mr. Montgomery said based on 
what he saw at the site inspection, they should make a proposal to move the setback buffer to 60 feet.  

Mr. Milazzo motioned to table this to the next meeting.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Brand and passed unanimously.  The N.O.V. remains in effect.

         c.      N.O.V.   251 Welton Street – oil spill or discharge                             
 
Jeff Brown e-mailed an update on 251 Welton Street

Commissioner Anastasio motioned that the N.O.V. at 251 Welton Street remain in effect.  Commissioner Lakin 
seconded the motion that passed unanimously.  The item was tabled.
   
              4.      Review Site Inspection Schedule   
         
Site inspections will be scheduled for the Pardee Brook Diversion Channel and 170 Birchwood Drive.  

     5.      Review  April 6, 2011  meeting minutes        

Ms. Rosenbaum said page one, the second paragraph should also state that neutral comments or questions could 
be offered.  Ms. Rosenbaum also said the Minutes should state that the Commissioners’ resumes are part of the 
proceedings and are on file if anyone wishes to see them. 

It was also noted that the last sentence of the second paragraph from the bottom of page 2 should be deleted.

Commissioner Shadle asked that the fifth sentence up from the bottom be deleted. 

Commissioner Brand noted that Mr. Aris Stalis’ was incorrectly spelled as Stolis.

Commissioner Lakin motioned to accept the Minutes of April 6, 2011 as amended.  Commissioner 
Montgomery seconded the motion.  The motion passed.  There were two abstentions.  

              6.      Other Business                                                                                      

Ms. Rosenbaum asked if any of the Commissioners have received reappointment letters.  There were none that 
had.  Ms. Rosenbaum said she will be going to see the Mayor on Wednesday and will discuss this. 

Next, Ms. Rosenbaum thanked Commissioners Tito and Lakin for the work they did on the deminimis reviews.

Commissioner Milazzo asked if the Commission should delegate more of this work to Mr. Vocelli.  Ms. 
Rosenbaum said some of the work could be delegated to Mr. Vocelli.  She added that he is doing a great job, 
and she is sure he could handle this himself.  She said he would only need a Commissioner to accompany him 
when a second view was needed.  There was a discussion regarding examples of sites that had been looked at.

Mr. Vocelli was asked how he felt about this.  He said in the interest of speed and efficiency there are some 
reviews he could do by himself.  He added that on some two pairs of eyes are better than one, and he would like 
to be able to call on a Commissioner if needed.  He said this should be done on a case by case basis.  He said he 
will still confirm these rulings with e-mails. 

6



Commissioner Milazzo motioned to have Mr. Vocelli do the deminimis inspections himself and make the 
determination if he needs to have the assistance of a Commissioner.  If assistance is not needed he can 
make the ruling on his own.  Commissioner Shadle seconded the motion that passed unanimously. 

Ms. Rosenbaum said there are few Commissioners going on the scheduled site walks.  She said this is beginning 
to present a problem.  She added that when she has been in the Planning & Zoning office it seems busier.  She 
said this may mean there are a lot of applications coming in.  She said she would like to have more 
Commissioners on these walks, and we should try to schedule so more Commissioners can attend.

Mr. Kops said it would be beneficial if site walks could be scheduled at the meeting when all the 
Commissioners were present and could discuss what would work.  Ms. Rosenbaum suggested site walks be 
scheduled at 6:00 or 6:30 PM.  

Ms. Rosenbaum thanked Commissioners Lakin and Brand for their help with Earth Day.  Commissioner Shadle 
said there were lots of children asking questions.  He said that showing the kids the watercourse on the maps 
was very successful.

The Commissioners discussed times that would be convenient to schedule site walks for 170 Birchwood Drive 
and the Pardee Brook Diversion Channel.  It was decided that the site walk for Pardee Brook would be 
scheduled on Thursday, 
May 19th at 5:30 PM.  The site walk for 170 Birchwood Drive would take place at 6:30 PM on May 19th. 

              7.      Adjournment                                                                         

There was no further business to come before the Commission, and Chairwoman Rosenbaum called for a 
motion to adjourn.  Commissioner Lakin motioned to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Brand and passed with a unanimous vote.  Chairwoman Rosenbaum adjourned the 
meeting at 8:15 PM.

Submitted by:   ______________________________________     
                            Peggy Craft, Acting Commission Clerk          

7


